Minutes of a Meeting of the Lincolnshire Police and Crime Panel held in the The Hub, Mareham Road, Horncastle, Lincolnshire LN9 6PH on Wednesday, 7th February, 2024 at 11.00 am.

#### PRESENT

#### Chris Cook (Independent Co-optee) (Chairman) Councillor Graham Marsh (East Lindsey District Council) (Vice-Chairman)

Councillors Emma Bailey (West Lindsey District Council), Allan Beal (South Holland District Council), Patricia Bradwell (Lincolnshire County Council), Chris Burke (City of Lincoln Council), Philip Dilks (Lincolnshire County Council), Jonathan Pessol (North Kesteven District Council), Paul Skinner (Lincolnshire County Council) and Stephen Woodliffe (Boston Borough Council).

Mr David Williams attended the Meeting as an Independent Co-Optee.

#### GUESTS IN ATTENDANCE:

Marc Jones	Police a Lincolnshir	-	Crime	Commissioner	for
Malcolm Burch	Chief Exec Commissio	,		the Police and Cr shire	rime
Joanne Davidson		e and		Operations, Offic Commissioner	
Julie Flint				ice of the Police incolnshire	and

#### OFFICERS IN ATTENDANCE:

John Medler	Assistant Director Governance & Monitoring Officer
Ann Good	Democratic Services Manager
Laura Allen	Democratic Services Officer
Lynda Eastwood	Democratic Services Officer

#### **53. WELCOME AND INTRODUCTIONS:**

The Chairman welcomed everyone to the meeting including the Lincolnshire Police and Crime Commissioner and representatives from his Office, members of the public and the media. The Chairman took the opportunity to remind everyone of the upcoming Confirmation Hearing for the appointment of the Chief Constable which was scheduled to take place as an extraordinary meeting on Wednesday 21st February commencing at 11am.

#### 54. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE:

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Sarah Trotter (South Kesteven District Council).

The Chairman informed the Panel that last minute apologies had been received from the Deputy Chief Constable (DCC) who had been due to attend the Meeting.

Further to discussion, a Member requested if further information was available for the Deputy Chief Constable's non-attendance and queried the level of representation at future Meetings.

In response, the Democratic Services Officer informed Members that the Deputy Chief Constable had given her apologies due to unforeseen circumstances. This was further confirmed by the PCC who explained that he had spoken to the Deputy Chief Constable that morning and was able to reassure Panel Members that it was the DCC's absolute intention to attend today's meeting when unforeseen circumstances had arisen.

#### 55. DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (IF ANY):

At this point in the meeting, Members were invited to disclose any relevant interests.

Chris Cook requested that it be noted that in relation to Item 16 he was an Independent Co-opted Member and would leave the meeting during that item.

#### 56. MINUTES:

The Minutes of the Panel Meeting held on 17 November 2023 and the Extraordinary Meeting held on 30 November 2023 were confirmed and signed as a correct record.

#### 57. ACTIONS:

Members noted that the following actions were now completed:

- Action Nos. 27 and 32 from the PCP Meeting held on 22nd September 2023.
- Action No. 44 from the PCP Meeting held on 17th November 2023.

#### **58.** COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE CHAIRMAN:

The Chairman informed Members that there were no communications.

#### **59. QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC:**

There were no questions from the public.

#### 60. DELIVERY OF THE POLICE AND CRIME PLAN:

The Police and Crime Commissioner (the Commissioner) introduced his latest report on the delivery of the Police and Crime Plan 2021-2025. The report covered the period up to February 2024 and was attached as Appendix A for the Panel to review, pages 37 to 52 of the Agenda refer.

The Commissioner took the opportunity to welcome the newest Member of the Police and Crime Panel and proceeded to invite questions from Panel Members on his latest report. A copy of the questions and responses are attached at Appendix A to the Minutes.

**RESOLVED:** 

That the update report on the delivery of the Police and Crime Plan be noted.

#### 61. PROPOSED POLICING PRECEPT 2024/2025:

A report was presented to enable the Lincolnshire Police and Crime Panel, to review and make recommendations regarding the Police and Crime Commissioner's proposed Police Precept for 2024/25. The Police and Crime Commissioner for Lincolnshire (the Commissioner) had proposed an increase in the Police Precept of £12.96 for Band D properties for 2024/25. Details of the proposal were attached to the Report at Appendix A and Annexes A, B and C, pages 55 to 76 of the Agenda refer.

It was noted that under Schedule 5 of the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011 the Lincolnshire Police and Crime Panel (the Panel) must review the Commissioner's proposed Police Precept and report on it. The guidelines for this process were detailed within Appendix B to the report, pages 77 to 80 of the Agenda refers.

The Commissioner invited Julie Flint, the PCC's Chief Finance Officer to deliver a presentation which would underpin the Commissioner's Precept Proposal.

The slides were divided under five main headings:

- Police Grant Settlement
- Expenditure Plans & Funding
- Future Funding Landscape
- Risk Management
- Impact on Precept

It was advised that the Police Grant Settlement was confirmed in January 2024 and that Lincolnshire continued to receive a small proportion (less than 1%) of the overall funding that was available from the Government for policing. This was a 0.83% share of the £9.1bn that was available nationally, equating to £75.9 million for Lincolnshire.

In addition, the overall grant funding coming in to Lincolnshire for 2024/25 was £89.8m which was an increase of £7.9 million from the

previous Financial Year. The Core Police Grant has increased by  $\pounds4.3m$  for 2024/25 largely as a result of the Pay Award Grant, the Pension top-up grant had been increased by  $\pounds2.4m$  which factored in the increase in pension contributions, a ringfenced allocation in connection with the Police Uplift Programme (PUP) has increased  $\pounds1.2m$  which was a specific grant for maintaining the 1186 target for officer numbers, and the Government confirmed precept flexibility of up to  $\pounds13$  pa for a Band D property.

On expenditure plans and funding the Panel was shown a graph that outlined the provisional expenditure plans for Lincolnshire, which showed that the majority of the spend (45.5%) went on police officers, and the next biggest item (26.4%) was for police staff & PCSOs, then other costs including custody, fleet, premises, and regional collaboration at 24.1%, capital financing at 3.2% and the office of the Police & Crime Commissioner (0.8%). The overall spending shown was £175.7 million currently planned.

Expenditure increases in 2024/25 were shown to include:

- Pay Award (Sept 23) 7% for Police Officers and Staff £7.8m
- Police Officer Employers pension contribution increase (31% to 35.3%) £2.2m
- ICT services cost pressures £2m; service developments £0.7m
- Utilities increase £0.15m
- Fleet Management Fuel, maintenance costs, contract increases £0.343m
- External Training Courses £0.1m

Under funding, the Panel was shown the provisional funding based on the  $\pounds 12.96$  precept. A graph shown to the Panel detailed how 52.5% of funding was received via government grants, 42.5% through council tax and 5% was contribution from reserves and other income.

The Panel was advised that total Police and Crime Commissioner Income for 2024/25 of £174m was forecast to reduce for 2025/26 due to a draw down on reserves to balance the budget.

There was uncertainty on the Governments spending plans beyond the next Financial Year. A graph shown to the Panel from the Independent Office for Budget Responsibility demonstrated the aggregate spending across services in which policing was included in the 'Other' category with a reduction of 2.3% per annuum in terms of average annuum real growth between 2025/26 and 2028/29. In terms of public spending over the medium term, this indicated there was limited prospect of funding increasing in relation to current government spending proposals. Lincolnshire still received the lowest funding per head of population of all police areas.

On risk and mitigation, it was explained that the numbers provided to the Panel were still provisional due to the timing of the meeting and that a significant amount of work had been undertaken on the police funding formula review and a future announcement for consultation was awaited.

To address risks, the Panel was advised that the focus was being kept on productivity and efficiency through investment, and through lobbying to influence grant distribution and the funding formula review to maximise funding opportunities.

The headlines from the public consultation on council tax undertaken between the 1<sup>st</sup> November and 6<sup>th</sup> December 2023 showed strong support for increased funding for Lincolnshire. 3,434 responses were received in total, with 81% of respondents believing that funding for Lincolnshire Police should be increased, and 54% of respondents were prepared to pay at least 5% more.

On the impact on the precept, the Panel was shown in monetary terms the impact for all council tax bands. It was shown that the precept increase of  $\pounds$ 12.96 to a Band D property equated to 25p per week and an additional  $\pounds$ 3.5m income.

The Commissioner invited Questions from Panel Members. A copy of the questions and responses are attached at Appendix B to the minutes.

The Commissioner's proposed increase was proposed and seconded for approval and upon being put to the vote, the vote for approval was carried.

Vote: 10 In favour 0 Against 1 Abstention

RESOLVED:

1. That the Police and Crime Commissioner for Lincolnshire's proposal to increase the Policing Precept by £12.96 for 2024/25 be approved;

2. That the Panel Chairman and the Democratic Services Manager be requested to arrange for the formal acceptance letter to be sent to the Commissioner.

#### 62. SUBSTANCE MISUSE THEMATIC REPORT:

The Chairman introduced the item, thanking the PCC and his team for the work they had completed on the report which had successfully informed on how the PCC supported services across Lincolnshire for the prevention and reduction of substance misuse, pages 81 to 92 of the Agenda refer.

*N.B. Councillor Patricia Bradwell left the Meeting at 12.52pm.* 

Further to a discussion, it was agreed that the Panel request a confidential briefing on County Lines from Lincolnshire Police and that it be added to the Training and Development Programme for 2024/25.

Following which, it was

RESOLVED:

That the Thematic Report on the work of the PCC in supporting the prevention and reduction of substance misuse in Lincolnshire was noted.

The Chairman extended his thanks to the Commissioner and his team for their attendance today.

*N.B.* The Commissioner and his team left the Meeting at 12.54pm.

#### 63. COMPLAINTS POSITION STATEMENT:

A report was presented that provided details of the procedures in place for dealing with complaints made against the Police and Crime Commissioner for Lincolnshire and an update on the number of complaints received during the period 1st November 2023 to 19th January 2024. The Complaints Position Statement was attached as Appendix A, page 97 of the Agenda refers.

It was noted that no (zero) complaints were made against the Police and Crime Commissioner during the aforementioned period.

No informal resolution of complaints had been required by the Monitoring Officer.

Following which, it was

**RESOLVED:** 

That the Complaints Position Statement be noted.

#### 64. NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF POLICE, FIRE AND CRIME PANELS:

Councillor Chris Burke, the Panel's liaison to the National Association of Police, Fire and Crime Panels informed Members that the National Associated had met online in January 2024 to consider budgets and precepts, and that the governance of Crime Panels remained an ongoing discussion.

The Panel's liaison continued to inform Members that discussions had centred on the Home Affairs Select Committee and it was observed that few Crime Panels had undertaken scrutiny of the fire and rescue services. In response, the Chairman advised Members that it was Police Commissioner's that governed taking on the responsibility of Fire roles where the local authorities were in agreement.

The Panel's liaison concluded that discussions of meetings examining the relationship between Ministers, Police and Crime Commissioners, MPs, the

issue of Mayoral responsibilities and Devolution had also been topics of debate.

The Chairman thanked Councillor Burke for his attendance and valuable feedback on the National Association of Police, Fire and Crime Panels.

#### 65. WORK PROGRAMME:

A report was presented that detailed the work programme and proposed meeting dates for the Lincolnshire Police and Crime Panel for 2024/25.

The Democratic Services Manager informed Members that the work programme had been updated as the thematic Report on substance misuse had been provided sooner than anticipated. It was further advised that a future item for the appointment of additional independent co-opted Members had been added to the work programme to occur after the report from ELDC's Independent Remuneration Panel (IRP) for independent Member allowances had been concluded and presented to Council in February 2024.

The Panel's liaison to the National Association of Police, Fire and Crime Panels informed Members that the considerations for additional independent co-opted Members had originated from a previous update he had provided which emphasised the importance for Panels to examine appointing additional independent Members and paying independent Members allowances.

The Chairman informed Members that they were required to formally approve the proposed meeting dates and that the report also included details of the Panel's training and development programme.

Following which, it was

#### RESOLVED

That the Lincolnshire Police and Crime Panel schedule of meetings for 2024/25 be approved and that the work programme and training and development programme be noted.

#### 66. DATE OF NEXT MEETING:

The date for the next scheduled Meeting of the Lincolnshire Police and Crime Panel was noted as 21st February 2024 and the next programmed date as 7th June 2024.

#### 67. EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS:

#### RESOLVED

That under Section 100 (A) (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the press and public be excluded from the meeting for the following item on

the grounds that, if they were present, there could be disclosed exempt information as defined at paragraphs 1 and 2 of Part 1 of the Schedule 12A of the Act (as amended).

N.B. Mr Chris Cook and Mr David Williams left the Meeting at 13.02pm.

#### 68. CO-OPTED INDEPENDENT PANEL MEMBERS:

COUNCILLOR GRAHAM MARSH (VICE CHAIRMAN IN THE CHAIR)

A report was presented by the Democratic Services Manager which provided details of the appointment of a Co-opted Independent Member to the Lincolnshire Police and Crime Panel. The Panel discussed in brief the appointment of a Co-opted Independent Panel Member.

N.B. Mr David Williams returned to the Meeting 13.06pm.

#### RESOLVED

That the Co-opted Independent Panel Member be re-appointed for a further four year term.

The Meeting closed at 1.10 pm.

#### Appendix A

#### LINCOLNSHIRE POLICE AND CRIME PANEL 7 February 2024

#### **ITEM 8 – Delivery of the Police and Crime Plan**

#### Q1. What metrics do you use to measure progress against your plan. Do you have targets in place and how do you measure success or shortfalls against your Plan's commitments?

The Police and Crime Commissioner's (PCC) Response – There are a number of different measures. Some aspects that are in the Plan are very much in a partnership space and not solely for the PCC to deliver. It could be a partnership piece of work that is a long-term project and in the short-term we may be measuring by activity rather than outputs or end result.

Undertakings which are time limited are much easier to evaluate and especially where public money is spent, we always try to evaluate robustly. Frequently we use external organisations to do that, for example earlier we referenced the Safer Together Team which was an initiative put in place to enhance the community by linking policing, partners, and the community. Our knowledge and understanding have been externally evaluated by the University of Lincoln to make sure what is working and what is not working so that we can improve. There is a whole raft of activity that is measurable which we monitor, and we have regular fortnightly meetings to look at delivery of the Police and Crime Plan and the decisions that we are taking which might involve future spending. We also look at things in-flight as they are progressing either midway or at the end of a specific project. There are also areas that are more measurable in numerical terms such as grants received from the government, and these have guite specific criteria we have to measure and provide feedback on.

Meeting the criteria very much depends on the nature of the area of business and performance may be measured directly through the force in terms of crime reduction or an increase in reporting. For example, in Lincolnshire we know that shop theft is underreported which means that figures would go up before they decreased if more reporting was encouraged. In general, it is not always a straight line to a particular outcome, and it very much depends on what the project is and what spending is required. We would also evaluate success as we go. Q1. (a) Supplementary Question - Would you be in a position to frame your plan in future iterations to provide this panel and the public with further information such as smart targets and RAG ratings so that people outside of the police can understand what you are able to deliver and what the situation is?

The Police and Crime Commissioner's (PCC) Response – There are a number of ways to enable probing of where an activity is going. We also publish the Annual Report which highlights activities throughout the year including what has or has not been working. I am happy to take it away and explore, however I would not want to turn it into a bean counters paradise as it needs to be an iterative process that takes a whole raft of different views into account. Sometimes it is quite difficult to assess a short-term deliverable measurable outcome. For example, if we consider the money invested in the young drivers' scheme for the Advanced Driving Course, it will take a number of years to find out if those drivers are statistically less likely to be involved in a collision. Early indications suggest that is likely to be the outcome, however it is not easy to measure in the short-term. For those instances, I would not want to disadvantage the spending and focus on things that would take a longer term to deliver. Again, I am not against the concept of looking at it, but it should not be unhelpful for the longer-term vision.

## Q2. Regarding 2.1.1 - The Happening was about to open when we last met. How will you measure the effectiveness and impact of this initiative?

The Police and Crime Commissioner's (PCC) Response - The Happening Knife Crime Initiative is open and fully booked up both for Primary and Secondary School age children from across the county. The initiative is being exceptionally well received and we would expect other areas of the country to follow what we are doing. Also, because some of the funding has come from the Home we will be ensuring compliance with those funding Office, requirements. This project will be evaluated externally; however, it will also be hard to measure as it is focused (but not exclusively) on younger people that are at slightly higher risk of being involved in or affected by knife crime and it will be difficult to understand the specific impact it has had. It is very much an educational programme which can be measured against educational standards and will take some time to evaluate, however early indications are that the approach is a leading initiative, and we will bring an evaluation back to the Panel when it is completed.

## Q2. (a) Supplementary Question – Is the initiative only about knife crime or were there other factors that you are measuring and looking at?

The Police and Crime Commissioner's (PCC) Response – Knife Crime includes a raft of things which is part of an overarching strategy to prevent young people becoming more involved as victims or perpetrators in more serious crimes. Although this includes a wide range of aspects, serious violence is the focus to ensure we do not have that level of criminality. In Lincolnshire we are trying to get ahead of the curve as we do not want to have significant issues such as those experienced in other parts of the country. This initiative is also very educational, for example, one of the rooms is setup as a hospital room to give lifesaving skills and to better equip people how to save lives if an incident occurs. These skills enable young people to be better prepared as good citizens and to be able to deal with any situation in front of them.

## Q2. (b) Supplementary Question – Can a visit to the Happening Knife Crime Initiative be arranged for Panel Members?

The Chairman confirmed that this could be explored with the PCC's Office.

Q3. Regarding 3.1.1 - What was the attendance rate of Town and Parish Councils to the meetings? How does the PCC intend to show what issues were raised and will there be a tracker of these issues to give assurance back to the community that effective measures are taken and the result of those measures?

The Police and Crime Commissioner's (PCC) Response – There was approximately 50 Parish Councils in each of the four sessions that were held. It was very well attended when you consider there are 507 Parish and Town Council's in Lincolnshire, and engagement will increase going forward. Presentation elements and feedback is being circulated to all Parishes not just those that were present. I feel passionately that Parish Councils have been overlooked with links to knowing what is going on and they have a lot of insight. They are not just overlooked by policing but by the wider democratic process and we need to do better to involve them.

*I have never been to a Parish Meeting and not had issues raised around is road safety and speeding. This why we have organised* 

another briefing to talk about what happened at the Road Safety Summit and I will continue engage with parishes to develop further understanding and knowledge. It is a plan of mine to make sure engagement grows and continues to ensure we understand what we can do better and to make sure the police understand the views of the local community in order to build those connections.

Q4. The police and the office of the PCC regularly ask members of the public to contact the police with issues that they might have, I recently tried to use the police website and after much going round in circles eventually managed to get to an email option, sadly after several weeks I am still waiting for a reply. Will the PCC look at the police website and see where it can be improved so people can simply leave a message and get an acknowledgement and a referenced number back so they can follow it up if needed?

The Police and Crime Commissioner's (PCC) Response - The Website that policing uses is a new system called Single Online Home which is the same system for every force area in the country. It is a national system which we cannot change, but it is better than it used to be, and I hope that it will continue to improve. If you used the online reporting mechanism, that should be front and centre on the website. The online reporting section does provide an immediate response and generally speaking the police do respond back to the public quickly. You should also have a page where you can put in your location, and it will tell you the information on who your neighbourhood policing team are and how to contact them which is more localised than reporting an incident. Alongside this, should be the information about the new neighbourhood newsletters. In summary, it is a national system and where there are issues, we should always try to amend and make improvements.

Q5. Alford recently had its local police station closed, the volunteer who had been opening the police station for the last 13 years, was asked to leave his ID and keys behind on a set date as he was no longer needed, this I understand was communicated via an email to the volunteer, I believe that all the small rural stations have similarly been closed.

Why was this as the volunteers gave their time freely so there was no financial saving in closing these offices just a feeling in the local community of yet further abandonment by their local police and why was there no consultation with

### the local community or the councillors. Are these stations to be sold off still further isolating the smaller communities?

The Police and Crime Commissioner's (PCC) Response – I would like to thank the former volunteer at Alford police station for exceptional service and volunteering for 13 years. What they have done for the community is commendable. I am aware that a senior police officer has recently been in contact with them and has rectified the issue that had not been dealt with well initially.

I have put out a statement making my feelings clear, and my expectation is the new Chief Constable will examine this with fresh eyes. My commissioning of the College of Policing to independently review the neighbourhood policing model that was put in place a few months ago was from a commitment I have made to have that evaluated and getting a national independent body gives the evaluation rigour.

It is my expectation as we are finalising the terms of reference is that it will also include the use of community assets such as these buildings. We need to work out what the future model of delivery and access for the public should look like and I hope to provide the best possible information to the new Chief Constable on which to make informed choices.

It is not just about the buildings, it's about deployment of officers, staff, the future of volunteering and listening to the community. At the moment it does look like the new neighbourhood policing model is delivering and achieving against the key objective, which is reducing crime, but it is all of those factors that must be taken into account. I also have trust and confidence in the leadership of Lincolnshire Police and what they are doing and that they are going in the right direction.

Q5. (a) Supplementary Question – A year ago the Panel asked the former Chief Constable if there was any truth to a rumour that Market Deeping Police Station was closing. His answer was not entirely clear and a few days later a police spokesperson was quoted in the media stating that the rumour was untrue, yet within a couple of weeks the station was closed without any public consultation. In the news recently Market Deeping was listed as one of many police stations that are now scheduled to close, and volunteers had been notified that they were no longer required. Could you provide further clarity on the situation? The Police and Crime Commissioner's (PCC) Response – There were other reasons why the volunteer element was reviewed, and it would not be right to go into detail, but they were the reasons the force acted. I can say for certain that I do not believe the assurance by the former Chief Constable was in any way misleading as the response would have been truthful and taken in good faith of what they were aware of at that time. I can confirm that the list has been published and 17 locations are on that list.

Some of those buildings never had desks and there were very few that actually had someone working in them to serve the public. The Police would consider them buildings not stations, and not as public facing buildings. My issue is not should police have buildings in a particular place, buy you need to review all of your estate and consider if we have got buildings in the right locations to deliver the policing we need. My other issue is that you do need to carry out public consultation and perform impact assessments. A new Chief Constable will be asked by me to look at the entire strategy as part of the neighbourhood policing review that we had agreed to undertake.

#### Q5. (b) Supplementary Question – On the closure of Police Stations, it was hard to understand how an announcement could be made without naming locations, why were the stations closed and deemed not necessary?

The Police and Crime Commissioner's (PCC) Response – This was for the police to answer. I want to ensure that assessments are based on cost and value to the community, and that it is reviewed in a wider context of what those buildings mean to the community. We need to make sure our communities feel ownership of Lincolnshire Police and that they get a good quality value for money service. There was no budget cut to make this saving and cost vs value needs to be addressed.

#### Q5. (c) Supplementary Question – Following your statement in the media that the public should be consulted over these matters, I was under the impression from your interview that you were not consulted about the closure of these buildings, was this the case?

The Police and Crime Commissioner's (PCC) Response – I had conversations with Chief Constable last year when this was discussed, and my understanding was that no decisions were going to be made at that point in time. It did come as a surprise ahead of a new Chief Constable being in post. It is an operational decision, but with new organisational leader being in post it made the most sense. From my point of view, it is ensuring that everything is done in the right way, and I honestly believe that the leadership of Lincolnshire Police has been excellent and will remain excellent, I have no concerns on whether this team are leading the organisation correctly, they are doing a great job, and this is one tiny element of the overarching strategy to drive down crime. I am sure we can get back on track and reassure the public that everything is working as it should.

# Q6. Regarding 3.1.5 - What are the key findings of the University of Lincoln evaluation of the Safer Together Team and can the PCP have a copy of the evaluation and action plan?

The Police and Crime Commissioner's (PCC) Response – There is no issue with providing a copy of the evaluation and bringing it to a future meeting when it becomes available.

# Q7. Regarding 6.1.5 - How has the bolstering of the Professional Standards Department (PSD) contributed to the maintenance of public confidence in Lincolnshire Police? What evidence is there to support this?

The Police and Crime Commissioner's (PCC) Response – The decision to put additional resources into PSD is an operational decision. It was a recommendation of the Chief Constable that I supported as he wanted to move funding into that space. One of the challenges with public confidence is that it can be affected in numerous ways. For example, there are lots of national stories coming out of the Metropolitan Police which are reported by London centric media and that has a direct effect on people's confidence on policing across the entire country. TV shows also affect people's confidence in policing and then you have local news stories. It is very difficult to isolate what specifically will have a positive or negative effect on public confidence.

We need to be clear that if people can have confidence that the systems in place are robust, transparent, efficient, and effective, we can also be much clearer about how Lincolnshire Police is operating. Public confidence is not a measurable factor we can isolate to a single course of action, so it will be an overall direction of travel. The cultural work that is going on within Lincolnshire Police, which other forces including the Met have come up to Lincolnshire to look at and learn from are ultimately making sure that Lincolnshire Police delivers for the public and that it leads to better and more confident policing.

Q7. (a) Supplementary Question – If we are talking about public confidence which is an intangible in many respects, it question of how you are instilling that raises the enhancement in public confidence and what is it. In terms of the publication of information, what is the nature of the information you put in the public domain and how digestible and accessible is it for the public, and do you have mechanisms in place to enable communities to be aware of what has been taking place. I am not entirely clear how you convey what has happened and the investments which have been made so that you can make bold statements that this public confidence and how will enhance vou have disseminated it to the public, or how the public will understand that and have more confidence.

The Police and Crime Commissioner's (PCC) Response – I don't think that was a question for me to answer, but I will take that on board.

Q8. The recent re-organisation of the policing in Lincolnshire has to many victims of crime left them feeling unsupported and vulnerable. They perceive an increase in response times to both the initial call out and in particularly back up services - e.g. scenes of crime investigations, taking statements etc. Consequently, they phone 101 for updates and the response they get - "it's being dealt with" does not fill them with confidence. The worry and anxiety these victims feel is having a detrimental effect on their mental health - setting off a spiral which makes them feel worse personally and increases their dissatisfaction with the police.

The problem is particularly acute in the isolated houses and small hamlets that occur in many parts of our district as well as in the villages and towns. The fact that all the PCSOs are centred in Gainsborough only reinforces this feeling.

In short, the residents feel second/third class citizens in the District. Gainsborough may have a greater volume of crime but for the individual victim this does not matter - they want the same response as that they perceive goes to Gainsborough residents [whether this is true or not]. What can be done to reassure these residents more finances to increase the size of the force? Better feedback loops to reassure residents that their crime is being taking seriously and dealt with?

#### Appendix A

The Police and Crime Commissioner's (PCC) Response – It is a huge sweeping statement to speak on behalf of all victims of crime and residents in your area, which I do not believe is reasonable. I do not think that is what you intended, but that is how I received it. I do not think it is reasonable to say victims of crime collectively feel a particular way. Our evidence is from what we have done with our own internal work for our victims' services and evidence shows there is a high, probably the highest level of satisfaction with our victims' services of anywhere in the country. I do not think it is a blanket situation and there will always be incidents where a particular victim of a crime or resident might feel their individual case has not been handled as well as possible.

There is an appropriate complaints procedure for that to be dealt with, whether that is going through the formal process of submitting a complaint via professional standards or through local resolution. If we have got dissatisfaction with the victims' service, then that is also something we would seek to recover with the individual.

The Operational choice on PCSOs was based on a needs assessment and was taken to try and support the community in a positive way. In the more rural areas where they have not got PCSOs they do have an enhanced number of officers overall, as well as specialist teams who are there to support and serve the community. I would love more police officers and staff, but that would mean an increase in funding.

Funding is the key issue, and the aim is to provide as much to frontline policing as possible, however the funding formula gets in For Lincolnshire this means that we have 155 police the wav. officers per 100,000 residents against the average of 203. The battle we face on top of police officers is our geography of 2500 square miles and 5500 miles of road to cover. These are the big challenges for Lincolnshire Police and we are addressing them in a number of ways. For example, through investments in technology, we have been able to keep police officers on the streets for longer whereas previously they were going back to stations and bases The Council Tax Commitment is to continue more frequently. looking at new technologies to make the police more effective and efficient.

Q9. On the issue of the Women Rise Programme, I would like to seek some further details on what the target age range and intervention period is, are they trying to stop problems

### before they occur and are they dealing with first offenders or repeat offenders?

The Police and Crime Commissioner's (PCC) Response – This is very much a Partnership piece work. It is an excellent initiative that Team Lincolnshire are working on. It is working with adults and the funding is specifically around that space. We are also trying to secure funding to expand into the younger cohort. It is known that the offending profile in females is younger than males, so it makes sense to try and support people at an earlier age in the female cohort.

With regards to the offender, I will ask my Director of Strategy and Operations to comment:

We are looking at early intervention, that is identifying people before they get into the criminal justice system and looking for opportunities to divert. The cohort is also looking at repeat offenders where they could have some additional support. The service has been funded using Ministry of Justice funding, which specified that it could only be focused on adults. The strategy and work that we have been doing has been targeted at reducing the reoffending group that have been identified. The criminalities are starting pre 18 years of ages and it was important that we could do something earlier. The PCC has recently agreed to match fund with the High Sheriff to provide a small amount of funding to the Lincolnshire Action Trust so that they can increase the scope and start to work.